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SOUTHERN'S STORES -~ 3 NORTHGATE STREET, GLOUCESTER

".-<- What wealthier towns once were, can only be imagined from vestiges of
massive and richly carved and moulded timbers, which todays remorseless
demolition gangs pull out from the old High Streets' medieval buildings, their
true age and character hitherte disguised by a Georgian or even Victorian
brick front'. '

F: W. B- Charles*
Amongat the many medieval towns to which this gquotation could apply, Gloucester
must surely have a position of precedence. Even the present statutory list of

buildings of historical or architectural merit reflects a concentration upon
the facades rather than the earlier less obvious aspects of the buildings.

One un-scheduled building whose merits were not realised was 3 Northgate

Street . Behind the uninspiring brick facade survived almost all the major
structural timbers of a double jettied, three storey two bay late 15th
centural medieval town house. Shortly before demolition this fact became

known , and measured drawings were made together with a photographic record.
This building has now been destroyed with the exception of a few timbers which
the City Authorities hope to re-use at a later date**.

Upper Storey

Although the upper storey of this building was more complete than those below it,
the attition of the hrick facade to the Medieval building resulted in the
removal of 3 feet from the length of its front bay- However, it has been
possible to assess the length of this bay the windbrace mortices having
survived in the purlins.

The roof was constructed without the use of a ridge piece, the ocak rafters being
simply pitched one against the other and fixed by pyramid headed pegs to the
purlins. The purlins were morticed into the principal rafters. (Drawing 3).

Part of the dating evidence for the building came from the centre oak truss,
the only ocne of the three to have survived intact The pyramid chamfer stops
on the posts; together with the curved tie beam and morticed purlins suggest
a date of the late 15th century.

All the timbers of the south wall of the building had survived, the north wall
having suffered mutilation due to the construction of the Tudor Cafe, 5/7
Northgate Street about 1926. Although the posts and wall plates survived,
the wind braces and wattle walls had been removed and replaced by brick. The
rear wall of this storey had been breached to give access to a building con=
structed presumably in the 18th century. As has already been stated the
front wall no longer existed, however a likely reconstruction is shown in
drawing 4.

An important feature of this storey was the intact original elay floor. Drawing
5 shows tapered slats horizontally lodged between channelled joists, upon which

a pink clay floor was hedded. On this storey clay dauh had also been used to
seal the gap between the wall plate and the ends of the rafters.

Second Starey

The general structure of this equal bayed storey has always been visible with the
exception of the front posts which were boxed in by wall panelling. The front
post on the south side was only seen briefly in situ during demolition; however
photographs were taken after its removal From these a subsequent drawing was
made (drawing 2) It is not intended here to discuss the many features of this
post, but its probable structural function is shown in the reconstruction
(drawing 4) -
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Tﬁﬁ“ﬁalifh%ﬁciﬁg ofn this storey consisted of horizontal timbers between the
upright posis, although mortice holes in the posts and floor beams suggest
dlagcnal w1ndbraces had been cmpluycd at some stage. -

The urlglnal floor had been remﬂwed but frnm ev1dence of mortice hﬂl&ﬂ Iur the
floor joists and a channel cut into the wall timber to take horizontal slats, it
is certain to have been identical to the floor above. As on the top storey the
rear wall had alsoc been b;gachpd to glve access to the later building, although
mortices in the rear post quggest the 11ke11hood of diagonal braces. {Drawing 1).

First S¥orey

It was:mot possible to axamine the structure of this storey prior to demalition,
for the whnle of the wall area was concealed by early Victorian panelling and
shop fittings. It was revealed that except for the posts all the original wall
structure had been removed and replaced by brick, The front post was exposed
only briefly and although its general shape was noted, at no time was its head or
foot v131ble. Mortice holes in the uprights suggest horizintal braces, but the
probahf11t? of diaqon&I bfaces cannot be ruled out due to the pair of mortice
holes in the réar post (See detail on drawing 1):

The Cellar

nt'ﬂﬂlﬂﬂ £he nedleval bulldlng was a 6 fcat deep cellar constructed of lias lime-
sanetone-blocks Itﬁ width was 3 feet less than that of the building and its
vceentreline offset by. 1l fuut to the nDrth 1t ran the whole length of the
“ibuilding. and opened out. into. the. r&?lars of the hulldlngs to the rear. At the
Iront:.of.the cealar was a mpdern brlck wall, however there were vigible two

brick :built. sieps which appeared to have led Drlglnally to the street. Tt was

“fiot pﬂﬁﬂlhla to.tell whether this c?]]ar was rnntempcrarv with the building or

Lolas later addition,

The:Fncﬁﬁe ;

arl

., The brick fncade was probably cﬂnstructed in the lBth century (see drawing 6).
" The only suh#&qUEﬂ* alterations being the enlargement of the second storey
| windows .into one, and the removal of the small paned shop windows on the

Ak U e f o

‘ThHe Reconstruction

With the information available from this building and by comparison with
:ﬁﬁildingé elsewhere, "it Was been possible to reconstruct its probable appearance
“az it wag at the end of the 15th ecentury, ' The ground floor frontage has been

reconstructed in the form of a merchants shop. the private gquarters heing abave.

' The Buildings to the REar

At right angles to the medieval bU¢ld1nu, was a long building extending 6 bays

northwards, which had an overall length of 51 feet, and has been tentatively
ascribed to c1rca 1700. 't was poorly constructed of re-used timbers. One
bay from the north end of this range] another building, perhaps 16th century,

branched westward. The latter building had 3 bays, but it seems likely to hao

been part of a bu;ldlng that was originally & or 7 bays that ran through to
Nnrthgate Street ' This is ' probably the building shown 'te the left of "Robert="
in drawing 6. The rooffof the surviving part of this building, although onlv =

“31ittle later than Southern's, was much more poorly wrought.

Nothing is known about this complex of buildings before 1799, when Edmund

Stock was in business, presumably as a grocere Ownership can be traced through
Stock and Mountain 1800: Mountain and Mayers (definitely grocers) 1828,

Andrews and Stock; Green and Herbert; Green; J. He Newman; Walters and
Southern 1872. From this date the business has been in the hands of the same
family .
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A photographic record has been made of these buildings by the Royal Commission
for Historical Monuments.

The writers would like to thank the following for their help and co-operation
during the recording of this building.

Commercial Union Assurance Ltd.
Mr. F. Wo. B, Charles.

F. Davies (Gloucester) Ltd. Demolition Contractors
Mr. T. Southern.

P. A. Moss and N. P, spl"j".

" Medieval Cruck building and its derivatives.
The Society for Medieval Archaeology Monography Seriea No. 2 1967.
** Group Newsletter No. 2.

leadon Valley

a) Maisemore (exact location unknown)
The following report has been 'unearthed! by Phil Moss from "The
Cryptian" (a Crypt School publication) Vel. L11 No. 2. June 1959:-

Roman Find

During the February haltf-term five senior boys made an interesting find
at Overton Farm near Maisemore. On a map of the farm "traces of Roman
paving" were marked, so the boys decided to follow up this clue. Traces
of paving were indesd found and, after a very little soil had been taken
from the top, it appeared to have the characteristics of a bridle path;
but about a mile further on, following the ditch that they presumed to
indicate the path of the road, they found a road complete. It was about
a foot under the surface, eight feet wide, and properly cambered. This
was reported to the museum and they said that they were very interested,
but so far they have not been able to visit the road. It iz hoped that
further reconnaissarnce of the site will be carried out during the

summer holidays.

SiEiTIq RlJfH-" HI‘H'HI-l JlTrr D-R-H-

In view of the casual finds made at "The Tailors" Hartpury (Glevensis No.3 plk);
the Gloucester City Museum record of finds from Upper Buttersend (see below)

and the comment made by Mr. Waters ("Dymock' Glevensis No.4 p.9) regarding the
Roman road alignment east of Dymock, efforts have been made to obtain further
information on this "excavation'. However, in spite of the possible fact that
notes (?) and drawing exist these efforts by means of correspondence and 'third
party'! investigation on behalf of the writer, have as yet not produced results.

b)  Upper Buttersend Farm, Hartpury

i) During 1949 one complete quern and fragments of four ethers were found
at S0 772261 in a field containing patches of charcoal and iron slag. Alang
the south-west side of the field is an old road which runs from the Hill to
Middleton, Upleadon.

ii) Charcoal and iron slag spread has been found at S0 772250.

The finds were both reported and handed to the City Museum by Mr, C. J. Hanby
of Upper Buttersend Farm, The information of this and surface features were
passed to the writer by John Rhodes, City Museum.

Editor.




























































